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Dear Adnan  

Response to Council, DIT and ODASA comments - DA 
24037925 
URPS continues to act for Samaras Construction & Developments (the Applicant).  We 
have been asked to respond to the requests for further information (RFI) issued by the 
City of Unley (Council) and the Department of Infrastructure and Transport (DIT). 

The letter contains a formal response to matters pertaining to the following:  

• Right of Way.  

• Stormwater Management.  

• Waste Management & Traffic.  

• Arboriculture & Tree Removal.  

• Civil Assets & Encroachment.  

• Urban Design.  

Right of Way  

We acknowledge the Council's concerns regarding the proposed vehicular access from 
Esmond Street via a Right of Way. We would like to provide the following clarifications: 

The subject property has a registered Right of Way which extends from Esmond Street 
in a southerly direction, as confirmed by the Certificate of Title for the subject land and 
Filed Plan 11716. As shown in Figure 1-3 below:  
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Figure 1 - Certificate of Title 
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Figure 2 - Certificate of Title plan  

  



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

4 

Figure 3 – Filed Plan 11716  
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Filed Plan 11716 which is referred to within the endorsement of the Easement in the 
above CT. The Filed Plan more clearly shows the relationship between Lot 115 and the 
subject land. It is an “L-shaped” allotment of 4.57 metres in width which adjoins the 
western boundary of the subject land. 

The development site has always included the relevant portion of the Right of Way 
which is proposed to be upgraded with permeable paving on shown on the SMFA 
Location Plan submitted at verification (as opposed to the whole of Lot 115 which 
extends into the adjoining Zone and so there is no need to “include the land as part of 
the application” at this stage). The original planning report submitted by URPS dated 8 
November 2024: 

• Explained that the land has an existing Right of Way over allotment 115 which 
would provide vehicular access (page 3). 

• Explained that at grade car parking from the rear private lane is proposed and that 
the relevant section of the Right of Way would be used for access and would be 
upgraded with permeable paving (page 9, page 22 and page 23). 

• Confirmed that the land which is the subject of the DA is adjacent to a 
neighbourhood zone (page 12). 

• Attached a “Location Plan” prepared by SMFA which clearly depicted the relevant 
portion of the Right of Way to be upgraded and was annotated as follows: “New 
permeable surface suitable for proposed car park entry”. 

Crossover Modifications   

We will ensure that Council is provided the opportunity to review and consider the 
impact of these changes through a subsequent referral process.  The existing crossover 
will be closed with upright kerbing installed to Council’s satisfaction. 

Stormwater Management  

The requested Stormwater Management Plan has been developed by GAMA 
Consulting.  

The proposed drainage details in the stormwater plan demonstrates that the run-off 
from the proposed development will have no detrimental impact on the existing 
drainage system as there will be no increase from the pre-development flow rates.  

The Stormwater Management Plan has now been endorsed by Council verbally at our 
28 January 2025 meeting. 
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Waste Management & Traffic   

An additional letter from Salt3 has been submitted alongside this letter to address the 
waste and traffic concerns raised by Council and DIT. The letter includes recommended 
amendments, justifications, and updated commentary on the proposed waste 
management strategies and traffic for the development.  

Parking Provisions 

The plans have been updated to indicate the car parking spaces are allocated and sign 
marked for the specific users.   

On-Street Parking  

In response to the on-street parking comments, we can advise the following:  

• Residents, visitors, and staff of the proposed development will not be eligible for 
residential parking permits and will be required to adhere to all existing on-street 
parking restrictions. We accept that residential parking permits will not be issued to 
residents. 

• The development will not rely on any changes to existing on-street parking 
restrictions along Unley Road or nearby local streets such as Young Street and 
Clyde Street for accommodating parking needs. 

• All parking, loading and waste collection activities will be managed and conducted 
to minimise impacts to the local road system in line with Salt3 letter.  

We are committed to complying with these requirements and ensuring that the 
development appropriately manages its parking and associated activities.  

Arboriculture & Canopy Cover  

In relation to the Council street trees, any works undertaken on Council owned land will 
only be undertaken via a separate authorisation from Council. We are accepting of the 
recommended Advisory Note.  

We acknowledge and support the City of Unley’s efforts to mitigate the Urban Heat 
Island effect and meet the long-term canopy cover target of 31% by 2045. However, 
we would like to highlight the following points regarding our development and its 
specific needs: 

• The site constraints, such as building footprint, access requirements, and essential 
infrastructure placement, limit the retention of these trees. Preserving them would 
significantly impact the feasibility and functionality of the development. 
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• Our commitment to sustainable design ensures that we still support broader 
environmental objectives. This approach balances the immediate development 
needs with long-term environmental considerations. 

We appreciate the importance of the City of Unley’s canopy cover initiative and remain 
open to exploring collaborative solutions that can align our development goals with the 
City's environmental targets wherever possible. 

Civil Assets & Encroachment  
 
We acknowledge the Council's comments regarding the civil works required within the 
Council verge and the encroachment policy. The Applicant confirms that the following 
requirements will be satisfied: 

• Footpath Paving Compliance 

– The Applicant will ensure that all footpath paving on Unley Road and Esmond 
Street is consistent with the 'Unley Road Public Realm Design Guidelines’, 
2022.  

– All alterations to the verge on Unley Road and Esmond Street will be carried 
out in accordance with Council's requirements and to the Council's satisfaction, 
at the Applicant's full cost. We will refer to the City of Unley website for the 
necessary forms and applications related to Specification Crossover Opening, 
Kerb & Gutter, and Footpath Repair. 

• Vehicular Crossovers/Entries 

– All vehicular crossovers and entries will be installed or reinstated to meet 
Council's requirements and satisfaction, at the Applicant's full cost. 

– Driveway crossing places will be paved to match the existing footpath and will 
not be constructed from concrete unless explicitly approved by the Council. We 
will adhere to the specifications outlined in the City of Unley's Driveway 
Crossover Specifications, as detailed on the Council's website. 

• Encroachment Permit 

– The Applicant acknowledges the requirement to obtain a new encroachment 
permit for the development, in accordance with Council's encroachment policy. 

– We will ensure that any encroachments are dealt with in a satisfactory 
manner, obtaining the necessary authorisations under Section 221 of the Local 
Government Act 1999 and paying the annual fee to Council as required. For 
other public places owned by the Council, we will contact the Council's 
Property and Assets team for further information on obtaining an 
Encroachment Permit. 

We confirm our commitment to adhering to these requirements and look forward to 
collaborating with the Council to ensure the successful completion of these works. 
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Urban Design  

Response to ODASA  

The SMFA plans have been amended in response to the comments made by ODASA. 
The changes are summarised below:  

• Final external material selections, including confirmation of high-quality integral 
finishes supported by the provision of physical samples. A physical board will be 
presented at the SCAP meeting. Refer to 7.01 Material board.  

• Provision of additional articulation to the south boundary wall. Refer to updated 
3.01 South Elevation.  

• Confirmation of the screening treatment of the transformer. Refer to updated 3.00 
North Elevation.  

• Confirmation of the screening arrangement for the rooftop solar panels. Refer to 
updated 3.00. 

• Inclusion of an irrigation system to the soft landscaped areas. Refer to updated 2.40 
Landscape Plan.  

• Upon review of the ground floor configuration, the size constraints restrict the ability 
for substantial or meaningful changes without completely redesigning the ground 
floor level. However, changes to foyer entrance have widened access for residents. 
Refer to updated 2.20 Ground Floor Plan.  

• LBS was engaged to undertake a supporting ESD report which is to be submitted on 
the portal.   

Response to Council Comments  

The SMFA plans have been amended in response to the comments made by Council. 
The changes are summarised below:  

• Waste  

– Bin quantity has been updated. Please refer to updated 2.20 Ground floor Plan.  

• Bicycles  

– We have updated the bike store to fit 10 bikes. Please refer to updated 2.20 
Ground Floor Plan.  

• Urban Design  

– The proposed canopy has been increased to match the height of the adjacent 
existing verandah. Please refer to updated 3.02 Elevation.   

– Proposed street verge gardens added on footpath to enhance the shopping 
strip’s character. Please refer to updated 2.40 Landscape plan.  
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Conclusion  

Should you wish to discuss any of the above, please do not hesitate to contact me on 
8333 7999 or cpolyak@urps.com.au.  

Yours sincerely 

 
Corey Polyak 
Consultant  

mailto:cpolyak@urps.com.au

